
Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  1 of 16 

SELINSGROVE BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, JULY 7, 2008 - 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Pres. C. Handlan, V. Pres. J. Herb, C/P D. Anderson, C/P M. Inch, 
C/P D. Mengel, and C/P E. Viker 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  C/P S. Hendricks 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Solicitor R. Cravitz; Mgr. J. Bickhart; Mayor P. Carroll; Junior C/P Morgan Botdorf; 
Police Chief T. Garlock; Borough Treasurer Sheri Badman; Recording Secretary Dawne Long; DH&L 
Representative Ken Stettler; American Legion Club Manager John Nace; Borough Residents Rubyanne 
S. Burt, Judy and Richard Kline, James Reeder, Joseph and Margaret Siro; FrankFest Representatives 
Frank Fina, Kim Fina and Jeff Frank; Millerstown Resident Mike McLeod; SARI Representative Brian 
Burke; Snyder County District Attorney Mike Sholley 
 
OTHERS ABSENT:   None 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER: 
 
Pres. Handlan called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.  Mgr. Bickhart called the roll.  V. Pres. J. Herb 
arrived at 7:03 P.M. 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF COUNCIL MINUTES FROM MEETING OF JUNE 2, 2008: 
 
Motion by C/P Viker to approve the minutes as presented.  Seconded by C/P Mengel. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 

PERSONS TO BE HEARD: 
 
Borough Police Chief, Thomas Garlock – Presentation of Police Report for May 2008 – Chief 
Garlock reported that due to computer problems he does not have access to the statistics that he needs 
so he was not able to prepare a report.  SEDA-COG has not returned the chief’s calls regarding the issue, 
but there is a technician working on it.  Chief Garlock stated the report would be a routine one, with 
activity levels declining due to the schools being out for the summer.  He stated that in the beginning of 
June the officers were very proactive and made the Borough a very inhospitable place for those who 
would commit crimes.  Pres. Handlan asked that Chief Garlock forward his report, when ready, to 
Mgr. Bickhart who in turn will forward it on to Council. 
 
Update on injury to Officer Wolfberg – Chief Garlock reported that Officer Wolfberg has a doctor’s 
appointment on Friday.  Mgr. Bickhart stated Officer Wolfberg is currently undergoing physical therapy, 
with Friday being the day the doctor will evaluate his progress. 
 
Update on hiring of new officer – Chief Garlock reported that this is at the background investigation 
stage.  The chief had been on vacation and will be going on vacation again, so this is in a hold pattern 
until he gets back into his regular work session. 
 
DH&L Fire Company, Ken Stettler – Ken reported there were 28 incidents in June as follows:  
2 automatic alarms, 4 standby assignments, 2 false alarms, 1 good intent service call, 3 HAZMAT calls, 
1 medical assist, 1 local alarm, 7 vehicle accidents without extrication, 1 lightning strike, 2 power lines 
down, 2 rescue calls, 1 structure fire, and 1 vehicle fire.  The incidents occurred as follows:  1 in 
Middlecreek Township, 3 in Monroe Township, 12 in Penn Township, 7 in Selinsgrove, 4 in Shamokin 
Dam and 1 in Washington Township.  Loss within the jurisdiction was $0.00.  June man hours total 543. 
 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  2 of 16 

Selinsgrove Area Recreation Inc., Brian Burke – Brian reported that the year is off to a good start.  On 
a typical hot day last year there were 220 people at the pool.  The first day the pool was open this year 
was June 6, and there were 385 people at the pool.  The YMCA is doing a fantastic job in their second 
year of management.  People are commenting favorably on the cleanliness of the facility and the warmth 
of the environment this year.  In order to be more family friendly, the hours of operation were changed 
from 1:00 – 8:00 to 12:00 – 7:00.  The Department of Health has made surprise and scheduled 
inspections for the concession stand and physical equipment with no issues noted.  Renovation bids will 
be put out by the end of the week.  The Degenstein Foundation should make a decision soon on their 
donation.  Jeffrey Apfelbaum, the Degenstein Foundation’s attorney, has done research into similar 
monies given to other recreation facilities, specifically pools, in the area – Lewisburg, Sunbury, etc.  Once 
this is done the matching part for the DCNR grant of $250,000 should be exceeded, which will enable the 
full renovation plan to be completed.  Work should begin following Labor Day this year. 
 
Pres. Handlan asked Brian to explain how event scheduling is done and who does the approvals, noting 
that Council’s concern is for safety.  Brian stated that people usually rent the pool for birthday parties or 
church events.  These are small events, and the fee is $125 for two hours to cover the lifeguards.  Up 
until now there has not been a public event such as FrankFest.  Brian stated that FrankFest was not 
discussed or approved by the Board.  The decision is made by the manager based on the availability of 
the pool when people call to ask about the fees and what dates are open.  C/P Mengel asked if the 
swimming pool covers the liability for after hours parties.  Brian replied that the pool is covered through 
the YMCA’s insurance policy for the employees, and the pool has insurance for the physical property 
including proper use of the facility.  In the case of FrankFest the insurance agent was contacted and 
everything is in order for the event.  A few people met to draft a more formal document as this event is 
different from other pool uses.  The document was presented to the parents of the students so they are 
aware of what is required of them. 
 
Jeff Frank/Frank Fina requesting approval for FrankFest 2008 at Selinsgrove Community 
Swimming Pool on July 11 from 7 to 10 P.M. – Frank Fina stated that FrankFest is a concert event with 
different rock bands from the area.  The document that Brian Burke referred to was given to the parents 
and filled out.  Parents and pool staff will be present during the event as security.  Chief Garlock will have 
an officer drop by during the event.  The concert is being put on for a VH1 Safe Music charity, which is a 
501(c)3 organization.  Kim Fina, Frank’s mother, stated that there will be at least four parents present, 
and some other adults who will also be present.  C/P Viker asked if there is a maximum number of 
attendees and Frank stated he has not been given a limit by the pool.  Kim Fina stated that the boys are 
meeting with the pool board tomorrow night and hope to clarify this.  Frank stated that they will abide by 
whatever the pool management determines, but they do not anticipate a huge turnout.  C/P Anderson 
asked how the event will be advertised.  Jeff Frank stated that he put an article in the newspaper, it was 
on the announcements before school ended for the summer, and there is a lot of word of mouth.  Frank 
stated that the ages of the attendees will range from 12 to 18, with parents also allowed to attend.  
C/P Anderson asked if there was any concern about alcohol, and who the bands are.  Kim Fina stated 
that alcohol will not be allowed.  Frank stated that driver’s licenses will be requested to verify attendees’ 
ages.  There will be five local bands of high school students, the farthest coming from Shamokin.  He 
stated that this is his and Jeff Frank’s graduation project.  Brian Burke stated that the initial contact came 
to him from Jeff Frank, as the pool was not open yet.  Because Jeff stated that this was a senior project 
and that it was for high school students, Brian felt that this was in line with the idea that the pool is in the 
Borough trying to be open-minded with regard to using the facility for community events, so he did not ask 
a lot of questions.  The only discussion was regarding the fee being doubled if the event time were 
doubled; the fee will be $250 rather than $125.  There was some discussion regarding noise, at which 
point Mgr. Bickhart suggested that this be more formal, with parent involvement.  Board members Bob 
Soper and Dave Stroup did some research to put together the document given to the parents.  
Pres. Handlan stated that Council is not trying to prevent the event from taking place, but they want to 
make sure that the liability issues are covered for everyone involved.  She stated it sounds as if this has 
been done.  C/P Herb asked whether Council is being asked to issue a waiver on the noise ordinance. 
 
Motion by C/P Viker to waive the noise ordinance. 
 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  3 of 16 

Mgr. Bickhart stated that one condition typically imposed is that the event organizers notify the affected 
property owners.  He suggested all the residents on Melody and Linda Lanes should be notified, not just 
because of noise, but because of traffic issues, which is a sensitive issue in that area. 
 
C/P Viker amended his motion to include the notification aspect as noted above.  Amended motion 
seconded by C/P Herb. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
District Attorney Michael Sholley – DA Sholley reported that about a year and a half ago he had come 
before Council regarding some changes in the DUI policies.  At that time Council had made a 
commitment for $2,500 to the project, as did each of the other boroughs in the county that have police 
departments.  The county does not need this money from Council as there is a different new DUI 
procedure that will be taking place, with another aspect coming into being as soon as the county 
commissioners give their approval.  In about 34% of DUIs there are also drugs involved.  Breath tests do 
not test for drugs so law enforcement has recommended continuing to use blood tests.  The procedure to 
have blood tests done at Evangelical Hospital would take an officer off the road for 2 to 2½ hours.  There 
is also liability involved with transporting someone that far, and occasionally that person makes a mess in 
the back of the car.  The new procedure gives the officers in Selinsgrove and Shamokin Dam two options:  
1) a series of five or six phlebotomists will be on call to meet the police officer at the police station, where 
the blood is drawn and then shipped via Fed Ex to a Pennsylvania lab and 2) transport the suspect to 
Sunbury Hospital for blood to be drawn.  In Option 1, the time off the road for the officer will be cut at least 
in half.  This will increase patrol coverage for the Borough.  Option 2 will reduce travel time.  There is a 
major push to increase DUI arrests by 25% to 30% by the end of next year and this new procedure will 
give the officers more patrol time during the peak times of drunk driving.  Some of the fines collected will 
be diverted to the Borough, rather than to the county or state, depending on how the pleas are handled.  
DA Sholley reported that he has decided to recognize the Borough officer and the State Trooper with the 
most DUI convictions each year.  Chief Garlock helped to come up with an incentive package.  The DA 
stressed that these incentives are based on convictions as opposed to arrests, because no one wants 
bad arrests to be made.  If an arrest results in a conviction it is recognized; if it does not it is not.  Officers 
Wolfberg and Powell are currently the top two in the county for DUI convictions.  DA Sholley reported also 
that the Drug Court has been implemented just this past week with the first candidate.  It is hoped that 
this makes a big difference in rehabilitation of drug offenders.  Judge Woelfel has taken the lead in this 
project, and both counties and the entire judicial system are involved with this.  One of the major 
offenders from Selinsgrove Borough is the second candidate for this program, and this person will 
hopefully be able to kick the habit through this program. 
 
Mayor Carroll asked if anything is planned in the county for DUI checkpoints or roadblocks during peak 
times, and whether there will be additional funds from the DA’s office to run programs during overtime.  
DA Sholley replied that he has met with almost every police officer in the county and some from other 
counties, and they all say that roadblocks and checkpoints are high profile, but return low results because 
the word gets out fast and people avoid them.  The police officers noted that flooding the area with a lot of 
roving patrols is more effective.  One of these was done recently in a multi-county area.  DA Sholley 
reported that PennDOT has a grant available for $11,500 for this type of enforcement, and this grant will 
be pursued.  If successful, this grant money will be used to pay officers for overtime so that local officers 
and sheriff’s deputies can be put into roving patrols without a financial impact to the municipalities.  This 
could then be done several times a year, over Memorial Day, Labor Day, New Year’s and July 4

th
.  A 

Union County sheriff’s deputy is in charge of this program and is looking into it through Highway Safety. 
 
Pres. Handlan asked if the approval of the commissioners for the phlebotomists is just a formality and 
DA Sholley replied that there is a liability issue.  The phlebotomists will be independent contractors and 
so they will not have malpractice insurance.  The county would have to cover them in case of a 
negligence claim.  The DA stated that in nine years as a prosecutor, six years as a police officer, and as 
an attorney in Snyder County for the past 20-some years, he has never heard of a phlebotomist being 
sued on a DUI situation.  He is hoping the approval is therefore a formality.  The contract for the 
phlebotomists was given to Solicitor Cravitz today, and he will take it to the county commissioners who 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  4 of 16 

will hopefully approve it tomorrow morning.  He asked that people call the county commissioners to ask 
for their support of this.  C/P Mengel asked if the phlebotomists will be on call and DA Sholley stated the 
program is being run by his victim witness coordinator, who is a trained nurse.  There are five nurses, 
some on the east end and some on the west end of the county.  They will work out their own scheduling.  
When a police officer makes an arrest he will call the dispatch center and ask that a phlebotomist be 
notified.  The dispatch center will have a list with phone numbers and will call the phlebotomist to ask her 
to meet the officer at the police station for the blood draw.  The contract says the phlebotomist must arrive 
within 30 minutes.  Weather conditions will be taken into consideration, and sometimes a trip to Sunbury 
Hospital will be warranted.  The police officer will leave the scene to drive to the police station at the same 
time the phlebotomist is getting in her car to drive to the station, and then while the blood is being drawn 
the officer can type up his report.  This will maximize the amount of time there is police coverage, as 
opposed to administrative time being used by an officer sitting in a hospital or transporting someone there 
and back again. 
 
Pres. Handlan asked Chief Garlock about convictions versus bad arrests, noting that Selinsgrove is a 
college town, and asked if anything is being incorporated regarding the program when speaking with the 
university.  She noted that there is communication with the students on a regular basis and this 
information could be incorporated into that.  Chief Garlock replied that Tom Rambo takes care of things 
on campus and he has a program to teach freshmen.  Chief Garlock stated he has gone to this class and 
spoken with the students, and he has received an email about doing this again.  He stated the students 
will be informed of the program.  He stated in the past students have been informed about alcohol 
offenses involving both driving and walking.  Tom Rambo is very proactive on the education aspects of 
this.  Pres. Handlan was concerned about the incentive program and DA Sholley stated this was a major 
concern.  He does not want people to perceive that the police are just driving around looking for someone 
to arrest.  The arrest must be good and there must be probable cause to make a stop, or the arrest gets 
thrown out.  The blood alcohol must be above the legal limit or the case does not even get through the 
system.  Chief Garlock stated that he and the DA had a long conversation about this, as he also had the 
same concerns.  He stated he is very happy with this program.  He stated driving to Sunbury Hospital will 
cut the time in half at a minimum, and having the phlebotomist come to the station cuts the time even 
further.  The program gives the officer more time on the street, which is important especially in a college 
environment.  Pres. Handlan stated she applauds this program, but wants to make sure Council is aware 
of everything they need to be aware of.  DA Sholley thanked Council for their time. 
 
Richard and Judy Kline, 402 South Front Street – request for Borough to vacate portion of Center 
Avenue and River Alley – Borough resident Rubyanne Burt, a neighbor of the Klines, spoke first and 
stated she is the ex-witness coordinator for Northumberland county and a part-time resident of the Isle of 
Que, coming to Selinsgrove from Shamokin in May.  She stated that Chief Garlock has been wonderful to 
her, as have various other people in the Borough, and she wanted to take the opportunity to thank 
Council for the job they do.  Judy Kline reported that she and her husband, as well as Rubyanne, would 
like to have the alleyways along their homes vacated.  Mgr. Bickhart had supplied an aerial photo and 
explained the orientation of the map and where the alleys are located.  He stated that Center Avenue is a 
60’ wide unopened paper street and River Alley is an 18’ wide unopened paper alley.  This request to 
vacate the Borough’s interests is similar to what Brian Farrell did just down the street from these alleys.  
Mayor Carroll asked if Ms. Burt was requesting the other half of Center Avenue and she replied that she 
is.  Mayor Carroll asked for her address and she replied that it is 500 South Front Street.  Mayor Carroll 
asked if anyone uses the areas for access to the fields behind and Mr. Kline replied that no one uses 
them.  Mgr. Bickhart explained that if the farmer or anyone else uses these areas for access that will not 
stop with the vacating of the roadways.  The person retains the use of the roadways for the access.   
 
Motion by C/P Herb to authorize Solicitor Cravitz to prepare the ordinance.  Seconded by C/P Viker. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Solicitor Cravitz noted that in the past the Borough has asked the homeowners to share the cost of the 
ordinance and advertisement.  The Klines and Ms. Burt are agreeable to this.  Mgr. Bickhart stated the 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  5 of 16 

costs are for the preparation of the ordinance and the advertisement of it.  Beyond that, the quit claim 
deeds costs would also be born by the homeowners with their own selection of an attorney. 
 
John Nace – request for special event for American Legion on July 25 and 26 – John Nace reported 
this event is similar to the event held last year.  Letters will be given to the neighbors on Market and High 
Streets, as well as copies to the Borough and State Police.  The Legion is also going through the Liquor 
Control Board for a special event permit.  The letter incorrectly reports the dates as being in June.  The 
entertainment will be outdoors, with bands performing 8:00 p.m. to midnight both nights.  Last year the 
events ended earlier.  Chief Garlock stated last year it was an orderly event and the Legion cooperated 
with the police department.  He stated the police will no doubt get calls, as they always do during an 
event of any type.  Pres. Handlan asked that Council be given a letter with the corrected dates.  She 
asked if Mr. Nace will notify the surrounding residents and Mr. Nace replied he will correct the letter and 
pass them out from the A+plus market to the racetrack on both Market and High Streets.  C/P Herb asked 
if traffic is closed off on either street and Mr. Nace replied that it is not. 
 
Motion by C/P Viker to approve the noise ordinance variance for this event.  Seconded by C/P Inch. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
James Reeder – request to Borough to vacate portion of Ninth Street – James Reeder stated he 
would like to have the Borough vacate the portion of Ninth Street that runs from Maple Street south to 
Route 522.  Mgr. Bickhart supplied an aerial photo and explained the orientation.  Mr. Reeder had a deed 
map to help clarify the area.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that Maple Street leads from Route 522 directly in to 
the fire company and Career Link.  C/P Herb asked if the piece of land shaded in on the aerial photo is 
used by anyone in the neighborhood.  Mgr. Bickhart stated it is very steep and not usable for a road.  The 
property is completely overgrown.  The only issue, which Mgr. Bickhart has since ruled out, was that the 
fire company uses the Maple Street access to leave the fire company building to Route 522, and making 
the turn to the west is difficult without going across both lanes of traffic.  At some point the Borough may 
want to widen that area to make a larger turning radius.  There is one telephone pole near the intersection 
that is actually a streetlight pole which would be easy and inexpensive to relocate.  If the intersection 
were to be widened, even with the widest radius possible it would not even involve Dick Bilger’s property, 
so that is a non-issue.  Pres. Handlan noted that it is possible that one day there will be a direct access 
onto Route 522 from the fire company itself.  Mgr. Bickhart stated there is a provision for that, and C/P 
\ Viker stated that does not affect Mr. Reeder’s request in any way.  Mr. Reeder stated that at one point 
the Borough did keep that portion of Ninth Street open by plowing it but that has been discontinued. 
 
Motion by C/P Herb to authorize Solicitor Cravitz to prepare the ordinance.  Seconded by C/P Viker. 
 
Pres. Handlan noted that Mr. Reeder would be expected to share any costs incurred and Mr. Reeder was 
agreeable to this.  Mgr. Bickhart noted that all of the lots to the left of the highlighted area on the aerial 
photo are owned in common including an alley that was vacated by the Borough in 1979.  No deed was 
ever prepared for that.  Mr. Reeder stated he has the ordinance, # 476, noted on his map.  Pres. Handlan 
called for a vote on the motion. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
C/P Inch asked if there was any additional information besides the aerial photos to help identify the areas 
in question.  C/P Viker noted it would be helpful to have the names of the streets written on the photos.  
C/P Mengel stated it would be helpful to have the information ahead of time so that they could be looked 
at.  Pres. Handlan stated that if it is possible to get the information out ahead of time Mgr. Bickhart will do 
that.  She requested that Mgr. Bickhart write the names of the streets on the document before copies are 
made.  C/P Mengel asked about the rush to get this done, suggesting that Mr. Reeder’s request could 
have been acted on in August.  Pres. Handlan stated in this instance Solicitor Cravitz can now prepare 
both ordinances at the same time.  C/P Mengel noted that the Klines’ request could have been acted on 
in August also, giving Council some time to go look at that property as well.  Pres. Handlan stated she will 
take that request under advisement, but she did not see a problem with doing the approvals tonight. 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  6 of 16 

 
Mayor Carroll asked Mr. Reeder if he had seen information in the newspaper regarding other people 
requesting streets and alleys be vacated and if that is why he approached Council, or had this request 
been on his mind for some time.  Mr. Reeder stated that he had been approached a couple years ago by 
Mr. Bilger, who asked that Mr. Reeder take over the triangular piece.  Mr. Bilger stated Mr. Reeder could 
have the property if he would pay the transfer fees.  At that point Mr. Reeder did not see any benefit to it.  
He has been mowing the grass and keeping it plowed.  He stated he also needs to apply for a quit claim 
deed for the Sunset Alley portion, and he thought that if he was getting an attorney for that he might as 
well do the rest of this at the same time.  He stated he will also see if Mr. Bilger would still want to sign 
over the triangular piece as well.  Mayor Carroll stated he was just wondering if people are coming 
forward and if it will continue to snowball because other people are taking advantage of the vacating of 
Borough property.  Mgr. Bickhart stated there have been calls throughout the last six years on these 
issues, but when he explains what is involved the people usually are not interested in bearing the costs 
so they do not come forward.  It is unusual that there are two in the same month, but there does not seem 
to be any groundswell of interest. 
 
Alley near Cole’s – Mgr. Bickhart shared a map of the opened alley behind Cole’s.  C/P Viker asked if 
anyone has asked to have this vacated and Mgr. Bickhart replied that there was actually a request for the 
Borough to improve the alley.  However, Mgr. Bickhart is concerned about improving a thoroughfare that 
dumps out in a very unsafe access to Route 522 and/or into Cole’s parking lot.  These factors are the 
reason the Borough has not done much to this alley over the years.  Parts of the alley have been paved, 
but it is unknown if this has been done by the property owners or by the Borough.  Now would be a good 
time to vacate the property.  Pres. Handlan asked who it would be vacated to, as no one has come 
forward.  C/P Mengel stated no one has been successful in contacting the adjoining property owners.  
Mgr. Bickhart noted that the property that opens onto Route 522 has a paved parking area and back yard 
that is accessed from the alley.  C/P Viker stated someone has parked an old mobile home in this area, 
and he stated that it sounds as if it is a small number of residents who would like to see it paved or 
improved, and in the big picture he is not sure that it would be a good use of Borough resources to do 
this.  Pres. Handlan suggested contacting Cole’s to see if they are interested in having the property.  It 
was reported that C/P Hendricks had contacted Cole’s and they had no interest or no opinion.  
C/P Mengel suggested making the alley one way from Cole’s Parking lot into the alley so people would 
not use it to exit onto Route 522.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that even coming off Route 522 or Bridge Street to 
get into that alley is a very complicated turn.  C/P Viker stated that with the exception of one or two 
people, this does not seem to benefit the citizens of Selinsgrove.  He stated that it feels like a solution in 
search of a problem and he would recommend taking no action.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that no action has 
been the action of Council in the past.  C/P Herb agreed that unless someone was to come to Council 
with a compelling argument for improving the alley, it should be left as is.  Mgr. Bickhart asked Solicitor 
Cravitz if the Borough has any liability in not maintaining an alley that is opened.  Solicitor Cravitz stated 
that the Borough could always abandon the alley.  They do not have to abandon it to anyone, it can just 
be vacated, stating it is no longer a public thoroughfare and it then reverts to the surrounding landowners.  
Pres. Handlan asked if the surrounding landowners have to accept it, and Solicitor Cravitz replied that by 
operational law it reverts to their title.  They actually do own to the center of the alley, but the Borough 
would remove their right to use it.  The property owners could then put a gate up or signs saying that it 
can only be used by the people who live there or their invitees.  Mayor Carroll asked if this is a PP&L right 
of way and Mgr. Bickhart replied it is not.  C/P Viker suggested that any action on this be put off until the 
next meeting.  Solicitor Cravitz noted that if there is a dangerous condition, such as the huge pothole that 
is there, and someone notifies the Borough office, then the Borough has a responsibility.  C/P Viker 
stated that it has been said that people have asked about this, but there have been no names mentioned 
and no one has come to Council with a request for action.  C/P Mengel stated it was not a resident there 
who did the complaining; it was someone who uses the alley. 
 
Harold Knause Property – Mayor Carroll asked about this property, and noted that the person is 
vacating and moving his lawn mowers.  Sheri stated that Mr. Knause has sold out and moved.  He is 
gone, the water is off, and the sewer has been cemented shut. 
 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  7 of 16 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS FROM PRIOR MEETINGS: 
 
Review List of Council Issues – Mgr. Bickhart noted that an architect will look at the Borough building 
regarding the roof remediation and mold issues.  The Borough is trying to get PennDOT to bring the 
Gradall in to clean out Weiser Run.  The last two items should be ready for the August meeting. 
 
COMMITTEE / COMMISSION / BOARD REPORTS: 
 
FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE:  C/P Inch, Chairman 
 
Payment and Ratification of Bills 
 
Motion by C/P Inch to pay the bills.  Seconded by C/P Anderson. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 

Statewide Tax Recovery, Inc. - Exoneration Requests – No requests. 
 
Second Quarter Analysis – Mgr. Bickhart reported that the budget fund analysis has been done.  Sheri 
has made a summary and it is available in the Borough office.  She reported things are going well and the 
Borough should be in good shape by the end of the year.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that some increases were 
expected in fuel and electricity rates, but there has not been any impact yet.  Much of that is a wash 
because the fuel that was purchased was more expensive, but more fuel was then sold at a higher price.  
Pres. Handlan asked who sets the Borough’s fuel price.  C/P Inch stated it is a state bid.  Mgr. Bickhart 
replied the Borough has a state contract and then charges 10 cents over their wholesale price.  The fire 
company and ambulance are some of the Borough’s better customers.   
 
PUBLIC FACILITIES & SERVICES COMMITTEE:  C/P Hendricks, Chairman – No Report 
 
BOROUGH ADMINISTRATION / PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:  C/P Mengel, Chairwoman 
 
Authorize advertisement for “Request for Architectural Services Proposals” pertaining to 
Selinsgrove Municipal Building AND Discussion of Letter from Snyder County Libraries – 
Mgr. Bickhart stated that he sent his draft from last month’s meeting to the Library Board.  He asked 
Council for their comments so he can move his draft to an advertisement to get the ball rolling as soon as 
possible.  C/P Inch stated that in the Library Board’s letter they state they will keep the library branch here 
for a minimum of five years.  Council knows this architectural process may take some time, so if it takes 
three or four years, then the library has only committed to staying for one year beyond that.  He feels that 
is inadequate.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that the library has made a statement allowing the Borough to go 
forward to obtain an architect to look at the joint use of the building including the library staying for a long 
period of time.  At the end of the feasibility study there will be the ability to convert it to a contract.  At that 
point the Borough will need a monetary commitment from the library.  If their share is $1 or $2 million they 
will have to raise that.  Mgr. Bickhart does not envision this as a building that the Borough will build and 
then give to the library.  It will be a joint project involving funding on both sides worked out to the best 
advantage of both entities.  The library’s commitment letter is a means to get to the feasibility study.  
C/P Viker stated that when he read the letter he felt the five-year number was an arbitrary one.  The 
board had to vote on something, so that is what they chose.  Mgr. Bickhart stated he read the letter and 
was at the meetings and he felt both ways.  He and Pres. Handlan both stated that the library is 
committed to keeping a branch library in Selinsgrove and this will be a longer commitment than five years.  
C/P Viker asked if what is being asked of Council tonight is the authorization to advertise the request for 
architectural services.  Pres. Handlan replied that that is correct.  She asked if anyone has submitted any 
comments on the draft from last month.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that he has not received any comments.  
C/P Anderson noted that she did not have any concerns about the draft.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that he had 
merged some documents that he found, and fine tuned them based on his experience in the consulting 
and engineering business.  It is an attempt to try to define the project as best as can be done in general 
terms of what is expected of the architect.  It not a commitment to anything.  Eventually there will a 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  8 of 16 

contract written, but this request invites interested architects to contact the Borough for the purposes of 
being considered or interviewed to define a contract as to what the architect will be called upon to do. 
 
Motion by C/P Anderson to move forward.  C/P Herb asked if a motion is needed for this.  C/P Mengel 
stated that she thought there was a commitment from the library to share in the expense, but that is not 
noted in the letter.  Pres. Handlan stated the library did make that commitment.  C/P Mengel stated her 
committee has no objections to moving forward on this. 
 
Motion by C/P Herb to move forward with this project with the understanding that the library will share in 
the costs.  Seconded by C/P Mengel. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Pres. Handlan reported that the library board has been talking about the need to expand the Selinsgrove 
branch.  She stated that all the library branches in Snyder County are small and claustrophobic.  They are 
overcrowded, and the question arose as to whether the libraries need all that they have.  In Middleburg, 
Beavertown and McClure those libraries will not get any bigger.  The space they have is all they are going 
to have.  The library needs to assess what they have as opposed to what they actually need.  There is a 
marketing class coming in at Susquehanna this year that will work on a project with the libraries to come 
up with a marketing plan.  The board needs to come up with what they want to market, and the space 
issue is one thing that has been brought to their attention.  Probably some time far in the future there will 
be a new headquarters library somewhere else, like in Monroe Township, but for the future the library 
board is committed to having a branch library in Selinsgrove and they realize the importance of that. 
 
COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES AND PUBLIC AFFAIRS:  C/P Viker, Chairman 
 
Report on annual meeting with SU administration – C/P Viker reported that the annual goodwill 
summit went very well.  This was not an event that was meant to create any specific policies, but rather 
an opportunity to continue to forge positive alliances.  Pres. Handlan stated that the meeting was very 
positive, and the Borough’s relationship with the university is the best it has ever been.  The university 
presented the Borough with a check for $25,000 with the understanding that later this year they may 
match what they did last year and present another check for $25,000.  The 150

th
 anniversary and the 

planned events for this year are very exciting for the university and the Borough. 
 
Town/Gown Meeting Update – This meeting was not held due to some sudden scheduling conflicts.  A 
new meeting has not yet been scheduled.  Early August is the suggested time for this. 
 
PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:  C/P Anderson, Chairwoman – No Report 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE:  C/P Herb, Chairman – No Report 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION:  Earl Moyer, Chairman – No Report 
 
ZONING HEARING BOARD:  Cyril Runkle, Chairman – No Report 
 
CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION:  Dalton Savidge, Chairman – No Report 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD:  Richard Norman, Chairman 
 
Review “The Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan for Eastern Snyder County” and consider 
adoption as a part of the Comprehensive Plan for Selinsgrove Borough – Mgr. Bickhart drafted a 
resolution following the framework suggested by the consultant.  Into this he interjected specific 
conditions reflecting comments from the Planning Commission in terms of their evaluation of the 
document itself.  They saw some things that they felt should be modified and those things are listed as 
conditions contingent on the adoption of this document as a planning tool for the Borough of Selinsgrove.  
C/P Viker stated he has reviewed the planning document at length and it is an admirable set of goals. 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  9 of 16 

 
Motion by C/P Viker to adopt the resolution.  Seconded by C/P Anderson. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
SHADE TREE COMMISSION:  Karl Maul, Chairman – The Commission will be meeting this month and 
most likely reporting at the next Council meeting.  C/P Mengel commented that it has been months since 
they were heard from.  Pres. Handlan noted that she is copied on their emails and they have been active.  
She noted that she saw a lot of trees had been trimmed along Broad Street. 
 
BOROUGH ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 
 
MAYOR:  Pete Carroll 
 
Mayor Carroll reported that on June 13 he attended a ribbon-cutting at Billings Vending on the Old Trail in 
Shamokin Dam.  On June 23 the groundbreaking at Selinsgrove Elementary School was held.  Work has 
begun, and the playground has been removed.  On June 14 he did a teleconference with the State 
Mayors’ Association Executive Board meeting.  On June 19 he attended the mayors and police chiefs 
meeting to discuss problems in different communities, especially gang issues.  Chief Garlock did not 
attend as he was on vacation. 
 
Mayor Carroll reported he got a call today from Mr. Foreman indicating that no work has been done on 
the Andretta property.  Mayor Carroll spoke with Solicitor Cravitz before tonight’s meeting.  When 
Mr. Andretta came back he was supposed to have a contract to Solicitor Cravitz saying when work would 
be completed.  That never happened and Mr. Foreman is very upset.  Solicitor Cravitz stated that 
Attorney Steinberg told him they would have a contract and the work would be done, neither or which has 
happened.  Council can have the work done and bill Mr. Andretta for the work, or a citation for failure to 
present the work can be issued and Mr. Andretta can be taken to court.  He stated it is cheaper to do the 
work and then bill him.  A lien will be put against the property until it is paid.  C/P Herb asked if this will 
result in the Borough getting its money and Solicitor Cravitz stated the Borough usually does not execute 
on the liens until the people sell their property.  The Borough does not force people to sell their properties, 
but there is always a first time.  C/P Herb asked for an estimate of the cost to do this work.  Mgr. Bickhart 
stated it would probably be at least $1,000 and possibly $2,000.  C/P Herb stated Mr. Andretta does not 
see, to have any intention of doing the work, so he feels it is time for Council to take responsibility and if 
that is the most expeditious way to do it, then that is what should be done.  Mgr. Bickhart stated it is 
beyond the capabilities of the Borough’s equipment so someone will have to be contracted.  C/P Mengel 
asked if a letter has to be sent and Solicitor Cravitz replied they have had their 30 days.  C/P Mengel 
asked if the Borough could just contract with someone to show up and do it, and the answer was yes.  
Solicitor Cravitz stated he will call the lawyer tomorrow and say since the work was not done a contractor 
will be in to do it and Mr. Andretta will receive the bill.  Mayor Carroll asked if this has to go out for bids 
and Solicitor Cravitz replied it does not.  Pres. Handlan cautioned everyone not to engage in conversation 
with Mr. Foreman.  She stated if he calls the call should be taken, as Council and the Mayor need to be 
responsive.  However, a conversation should not be engaged in with him; he should be referred to 
Solicitor Cravitz.  The situation is too volatile and she has concerns about it.  Mayor Carroll asked if the 
Borough has liens out now that are awaiting the sale of a property.  Solicitor Cravitz replied there are liens 
out, and Sheri stated she has not executed any of them.  Mayor Carroll asked if letters are ever sent to 
these property owners.  Solicitor Cravitz replied that the liens are renewed every five years and Sheri 
stated she sends the property owners notices every other year stating how much they owe.  C/P Inch 
asked if this needs to go out to bid and Solicitor Cravitz replied it does not because it is under $4,000.  
Pres. Handlan asked if there is a description of the work that has to be done.  Solicitor Cravitz stated 
Mgr. Bickhart has given a breakdown of the work from prior aerials.  Mgr. Bickhart stated the court’s 
directive is that it be restored to the condition it was in before all this began.  By way of some 
documentation the Borough can prove what that was, but this falls back on him.  Both Pres. Handlan and 
Mgr. Bickhart stated they do not like this falling back on him, but there seems to be no others solution 
because Mgr. Bickhart knows what the condition of the lot was before this began and he can direct the 
contractor to restore it to that condition.  He stated the alternative is to direct the contractor to meet with 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  10 of 16 

Mr. Foreman and do the work to his satisfaction.  He stated that Corby could probably direct the 
contractor with limitations provided by Mgr. Bickhart. 
 
Motion by C/P Herb to authorize contracting out this work and billing Mr. Andretta.  Seconded by 
C/P Inch. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR:  Robert Cravitz, Esq. 
 
Consider adoption of Proposed Ordinance # 767, pertaining to the acceptance of deeds of 
dedication to portion of Independence Street – Solicitor Cravitz reported this is the ordinance 
discussed by Marv Rudnitsky last month for the portion of Independence Street west of Magnolia Avenue.  
Solicitor Cravitz will prepare the necessary deeds of dedication and they will be recorded by 
Mgr. Bickhart.  Within ten days of this enactment the ordinance will personally be served on the record 
titleholders so they can petition Borough Council if they are aggrieved by this. 
 
Motion by C/P Anderson to adopt Ordinance # 767.  Seconded by C/P Herb. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Consider adoption of Proposed Ordinance # 768, pertaining to establishing a 3-way stop sign at 
intersection of Bough and Front Streets, prohibiting parking along portion of East Pine Street, and 
authorizing one Special Purpose parking (handicapped) along North Market Street – Solicitor 
Cravitz reported that there is an addition to the previous ordinance under Section 133-14 Stop 
Intersections to be amended to include Front Street for direction of travel north at Bough Street and Front 
Street for direction of travel south at Bough Street.  The remainder of the section remains the same.  
Section 133-25 Parking Prohibited at All Times is amended to read Pine Street east on the south side 
from 150 feet east of the east side of Water Street to the bridge over Penn’s Creek.  The remainder of the 
section remains unchanged.  Section 133-28 Special Purpose Parking adds the handicapped parking on 
Market Street beginning at 57 feet north of West Pine Street and including one stall to the north.  
C/P Anderson asked if a letter went to PennDOT regarding the stop sign issue and if they have 
responded.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that PennDOT has concurred.  He noted that the Pine Street situation 
resulted from the street being widened a bit.  It had previously been no parking on the south side from 
Water Street to the bridge, but with the widening it became possible to safely park cars there. 
 
Motion by C/P Anderson to adopt Ordinance # 768.  Seconded by C/P Mengel. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Fireworks Ordinance regarding Susquehanna University Sesquicentennial Plans – Solicitor Cravitz 
stated Council will have to adopt an ordinance with regard to fireworks displays.  Mgr. Bickhart has been 
given a sample ordinance to review before it comes to Council.  The sample is probably overkill, but it 
includes provisions for bonding, insurance, and all the bells and whistles.  Something will need to be in 
place in order for the Borough to issue the permit for the fireworks in order to get insurances.  
Mgr. Bickhart stated that he and Solicitor Cravitz spent quite a bit of time going over several different 
ordinances, and the draft that has been put together is a new level of ordinance in that it combines a lot of 
good ideas from many different ordinances.  Mgr. Bickhart noted that the one issue that jumped out is that 
in addition to requiring a $1 or $2 million insurance policy where the Borough would be the named 
insured, it also requires a $1/2 million bond to be in place.  This is a level of indemnification that the 
Borough has not gone to in the past.  Mgr. Bickhart has contacted the university and asked them to check 
with their vendor to find out whether this is reasonable or not.  If the Borough establishes requirements 
that no one is willing to meet then fireworks displays will be effectively prohibited in the Borough.  Most of 
the ordinances available would be for the Borough to hire a pyrotechnician to put on a display; however, 
in this case the university is hiring someone to put on a display within the Borough and the Borough is 
imposing regulations on the university who is imposing regulations on the pyrotechnician.  Therefore, this 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  11 of 16 

ordinance will be a little more convoluted and Mgr. Bickhart wants to be sure it is not impossible to have 
fireworks.  He is waiting to hear back on this.  Pres. Handlan asked if the university could just do the 
fireworks across the street in Penn Township.  Solicitor Cravitz stated that this is similar to what they do in 
State College.  Pres. Handlan stated that Penn State’s fireworks are in the top ten in the country, and SU 
is only looking at a 15-minute display.  Since the race track in Penn Township has had fireworks displays 
in the past she was sincere about suggesting that the university do this on university property in Penn 
Township.  C/P Inch asked if the Borough has any responsibility if something were to catch fire.  
Mgr. Bickhart stated that he listened with great interest this year to the catastrophes that occurred on the 
4

th
 of July around the country.  In one instance the whole bank of fireworks went off and injured a lot of 

people.  In another instance one of the mortars fell down and launched into the crowd.  These are 
exceptions, but if it were to happen everyone would be quick to sue the Borough.  C/P Viker stated that 
he is confident that Mgr. Bickhart and those he is working with are diligently addressing this issue.  
Mgr. Bickhart stated this is a great ordinance, but he wants to be sure it is not a deal-breaker due to the 
insurance plus bond requirement.  It is the solicitor’s recommendation that both be done.  Solicitor Cravitz 
stated in doing the investigation on this, he and Mgr. Bickhart have determined that there is potential 
liability to the Borough.  C/P Herb stated that Council will have a chance to look at this and consider it in 
detail before the next meeting.  Mgr. Bickhart agreed that it would have to be by the next meeting so this 
can move forward.  He stated the state law requires that the Borough issue a permit.  The pyrotechnician 
cannot do the fireworks show without having something from the Borough that looks like permission.  
Solicitor Cravitz noted that once the Borough gives permission they are locked into liability in the event 
something happens. 
 
Clearing up some issues, Mgr. Bickhart asked if the Portzline revised description is to go to him and 
Solicitor Cravitz replied it is.  Mgr. Bickhart asked if the agreement with the county is still being worked on 
and Solicitor Cravitz replied the final draft is going to Omega. 
 
BOROUGH ENGINEER:  J. A. Coukart & Associates 
 
Update on pending projects 
 
C/P Herb asked if there is a problem with the contractor.  Mgr. Bickhart replied it is not a problem, but a 
technical matter in that the engineer on behalf of the Borough has notified the contractor that he 
exceeded the time limit.  The contractor’s proper response is to submit evidence to show whether he has 
justifiable reasons for going past the deadline.  Mr. Coukart has not heard back from the contractor, but 
once he does he will give Council advice as to whether there is a problem with the contractor.  
Mgr. Bickhart does not feel this is a big deal and it did not go that long past the deadline.  Pres. Handlan 
stated that Mr. Coukart should be more specific in his communication, as that information is not able to be 
determined from what he has written.  She would like to know how many days the project is beyond the 
contracted completion date.  C/P Mengel stated the letter was written on June 17, which was the date it 
was supposed to be completed and it has not yet been completed.  Pres. Handlan asked if the project is 
done yet and Sheri replied they are almost done.  Mgr. Bickhart noted that the delay continues to and 
including now, as far as the Borough knows.  That is roughly three weeks.  The contractor is completing 
the work.  Pres. Handlan asked if the Borough will assess the contractor $100 per day from June 17.  
Mgr. Bickhart replied that that is a decision that Council can make once they have all the information.  
The engineer has put the contractor on notice that liquidated damages begin effective June 18. 
 
C/P Inch asked where the Weiser Run issues stands, and what the next step is.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that 
he asked Mr. Coukart for a schedule on the project.  Mr. Coukart has given a breakdown of what he is 
doing.  The next step is for Mr. Coukart to finish the plans and make a recommendation as to what needs 
to be done.  The school district has agreed to split the engineering costs.  Mr. Coukart has submitted a 
proposal of around $7,000 to actually do the work.  Then the school district will have to move ahead to do 
the work.  Since last month’s Council meeting Mgr. Bickhart met with Mr. Coukart regarding agreements 
and concerns.  Mgr. Bickhart has a concern about an amount of embankment that was gouged out and 
washed downstream.  The school district’s remedy was to stabilize the new edge of bank but that is not 
the original edge; it is a different alignment.  Mr. Coukart included some reshaping issues because a new 
embankment edge will create new and different flows.  C/P Inch asked if there is a time schedule for this 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  12 of 16 

project and Mgr. Bickhart replied that Mr. Coukart did not share one with him.  C/P Anderson asked if 
Council can require finalized plans by a certain date.  Solicitor Cravitz replied that Council can do this.  
Mgr. Bickhart stated that to provide the plans by the August meeting is a reasonable request for Council 
to make of the engineer. 
 
Motion by C/P Anderson to require the engineer to provide the plans by the August Council meeting.  
Seconded by C/P Inch. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 

BOROUGH TREASURER:  Sharon Badman 
 
Review Treasurer’s Report for June 2008 -   Pres. Handlan asked if there were any questions on the 
Treasurer’s report.  Hearing none, she stated that it is on file for audit. 
 
BOROUGH MANAGER / SECRETARY / ZONING OFFICER:  Mgr. Bickhart 
 
Non-Police Complaint Update 
 
Mgr. Bickhart reported he needs to check with John Coukart regarding the John Ward issue on Weiser 
Run.  He stated there is some deterioration of the alley and some drainage issues, but he does not see 
that it has anything to do with Weiser Run. 
 
The trimming situation with Doug Herrold involves his hiring Eastern Industries to trim some trees 
between the curb and the sidewalk, and then the Borough crew came in and trimmed them a bit higher.  
This time of year the Borough crew does trim obstructions above the curb line using a 12’ measure.  
Mgr. Bickhart has not had a chance to speak with Mr. Herrold about this yet.  The Shade Tree 
Commission has offered, and Corby has agreed, that there could be a session arranged between the two 
groups so the Shade Tree Commission and their experts could in-service the Borough crew in terms of 
trimming protocols, what should be done and how.  The Borough crew is pretty careful when trimming but 
they could learn something new from this type of meeting. 
 
Mgr. Bickhart reported that the property at 2 West Sassafras Street is for sale and hopefully when that 
happens this problem will go away.  Apparently some of Linda Pregent’s former clients at Loving Care, 
who she says have criminal records, are now living elsewhere in the Borough.  C/P Viker noted that a 
person is allowed to have a criminal record and live in the Borough. 
 
Update of PROPERTY TRANSFERS and BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED, Janet Powers, Deputy 
Zoning and Permit Officer – Information only.  Pres. Handlan commented that there are two sub shops 
going in across the street from each other, both in her block.  She stated the only problem with the last 
one was that they were open until 3:00 a.m. 
 
Review proposed amendment to Recycling regulations, as required by state – Tabled until next 
month. 
 
HB2018 Rally update – Mgr. Bickhart noted that the Boroughs Association says that if this were to be 
adopted as it is currently written Selinsgrove would receive $538,000 in revenues that the Borough does 
not currently see due to all the tax exempt real estate within the Borough.  This is more money than the 
Borough would receive if the properties paid taxes.  Mgr. Bickhart noted he does not expect to see this 
any time soon.  The rally has been postponed until September.  The Boroughs Association is promoting 
HB2018 to solve this problem.  C/P Inch stated there are several bills being discussed in Harrisburg, and 
he asked if this is the one that would only apply to towns like Selinsgrove and not only to municipalities 
with state owned and operated schools.  Pres. Handlan replied that this House Bill is for municipalities 
with 15% or more tax exempt properties.  Mgr. Bickhart noted this covers a lot of municipalities. 
 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  13 of 16 

Consideration of four-day work weeks – Mgr. Bickhart stated that there has been some press 
regarding energy conservation and four-day work weeks as a means of conserving energy and costs.  
Due to this he talked to the Borough employees to find out what their interests were.  In staff meetings 
they have discussed the pros and cons of a four-day work week.  The savings in electricity from not 
having the Borough offices open on a Friday would result in about $35 per month.  Based upon 
everything he has heard, Mgr. Bickhart does not see a motivation to go to a four-day work week at this 
time, although he would not rule it out in the future.  It would save some employees some commuting 
expenses, but the farthest employee lives only 20 miles away.  C/P Anderson stated she heard a report 
on NPR that the entire state of Utah is going to do a four-day work week.  Some people were upset about 
this, especially women with young children.  Bowling Green and Ohio schools routinely do this during the 
summertime.  Pres. Handlan stated that state of New Jersey will also use a four-day work week in a 
limited capacity.  C/P Anderson asked if anyone is doing this where the worker has the choice as an 
individual.  Mgr. Bickhart stated he has not seen this, but the exception to this would be companies that 
have flex time as part of their regular employee practices, and companies in which an employee could 
work from home.  He stated someone who works in Harrisburg would recognize significant savings from a 
four-day work week.  C/P Inch stated this was discussed in the Finance Committee this afternoon and 
they also agreed that at the present time they are not interested in doing this as it would limit the public’s 
access.  Pres. Handlan stated it would be different if there were significant savings and Mgr. Bickhart 
agreed, stating he could not find significant savings at this time.  Pres. Handlan stated there was 
something in the paper yesterday or today about this.  C/P Anderson stated the oddest example she has 
heard was an educational institution somewhere that allowed a student to come one day a week and still 
do a full course load.  The student would be in class 13 hours on that one day a week and still be a 
fulltime student.  Mgr. Bickhart stated there was an article in the Daily Item, for which he had gotten a 
phone call from Wayne Lepley, that focused primarily on what police departments were doing in this 
region to try to save money and fuel.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that Wayne was gracious enough to lead him 
through that and what other people have been saying because Mgr. Bickhart had not thought this 
through, but he was aware enough of Chief Garlock’s attitude regarding this to know that the police 
department is a facility of need.  There are certain services that must be provided and a small department 
cannot just cut back.  Damian Gessel had called today to inquire about whether the public works 
department was considering a four-day work week.  Mgr. Bickhart stated much more will be heard about 
this subject.  In the course of doing this research, Mgr. Bickhart looked into the energy efficiency of the 
Borough building and he will pursue this.  He has a representative of Control Services, who set up the 
heating and cooling system, coming in to look at the computer controls because Mgr. Bickhart sees some 
things that are not quite right and he will try to optimize the building.  Beyond that, being reasonable and 
frugal and not wasting fuel is something that will be done, but there will be no recommendation at this 
time to change the work week.  Chief Garlock stated that the Sunbury police department tried similar 
things back in the 1980s.  They bought a 4-cylinder car rather than an 8-cylinder car and had to replace 
the engine after two years.  They then got a 6-cylinder car rather than a 4-cylinder car and had to replace 
the engine after three years.  The savings in gas to go to a smaller car does not work with this type of a 
job.  The Borough cars get 16 to 17 miles per gallon, which is pretty good for an 8-cylinder car.  The 
police are also looking for ways to help, but short of just sitting in the office and waiting for calls, they are 
limited on what they can do.  Chief Garlock stated that one police department somewhere near here now 
has bicycle patrols.  However, Selinsgrove is a one-man police department and he will not have bicycle 
patrols in a one-man police department, and not even with a two-man or even three-man police 
department.  It is a waste of manpower.  There is a civilian employee who is doing parking regulations 
downtown, and he is on bike patrol.  SU allowed the borough to use one of their police bicycles for the 
civilian employee.  He patrols the parks and parking areas looking for violations.  He has a radio and 
tickets.  This is a good cost effective alternative, but Chief Garlock stated to just put a police officer on a 
bicycle is a waste of manpower.  C/P Inch stated that the state of Utah exempted the police departments 
from their new regulations.  Chief Garlock stated the police department has the ability to do four 10-hour 
shifts because it is in their contract at his request, but with the manpower they have right now they would 
have to cut hours off and he does not want to do that.  Once the manpower is back up, they can revisit 
the issue and if they choose to enact four 10-hour shifts they can do so because it is in the contract. 
 
Swimming Pool contract – Mgr. Bickhart stated that the contract with the swimming pool will be the 
Borough’s contract.  He noted that Brian Burke misspoke a little bit in saying it was just going to go out to 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  14 of 16 

bid.  The architect is providing Mgr. Bickhart with a copy of the contract.  He has reviewed it with Solicitor 
Cravitz, who had concerns that were passed along to be resolved.  However, the contract is with the 
Borough of Selinsgrove and not with Selinsgrove Area Recreation, Inc.   Therefore, they will be bidding it 
after the Borough is satisfied with the contract.  SARI is just helping to raise the funds. 
 
SELINSGROVE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY – Donald Bottiger, Chairman – No Report 
 
EASTERN SNYDER COUNTY REGIONAL AUTHORITY – Bob Dagle and George Kinney, Chairmen 
 
Update on connection ban – Mgr. Bickhart reported that the connection ban has been resolved and 
people are connecting to the system again. 
 
Update on reported high levels of Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD), a measure of the organic 
strength of wastewater, from metering manhole at Sand Hill Road – Mgr. Bickhart reported that the 
Borough’s effluent to ESCRA should not exceed 200.  Based upon some sampling that ESCRA did in 
April and May, they found numbers ranging from 390 to 4,280 with an average of 10 Wednesdays and 
Fridays of almost 1,200, which is six times what it should be.  Before that got to be too public, 
Mgr. Bickhart wanted to look at the system and pinpoint where the problem might be coming from inside 
the Borough’s system.  The collection system was broken down into sections and some probable 
candidates were isolated.  Based upon information that John Coukart shared, the probable kind of 
material was known.  On one particular day Brad Simcox set up some samplings, which were analyzed in 
the lab.  The findings were pretty much uniform concentrations of 200 to 370.  At least in the Wednesday 
the Borough was looking this was not exhibiting itself even though it had occurred for the ten previous 
Wednesdays.  This leads to the conclusion that it may be an institution that was not operating during the 
Borough’s sampling, such as the university or the school district.  Once the university and school district 
are back in operation samples will be taken again.  This is not being done clandestinely, but there was 
concern that it might be some industrial customers doing something they should not be doing so the 
Borough did not make a big announcement about the sampling.  It was found that it was not the industrial 
customers.  This problem will be watched because ESCRA will surcharge the Borough for the high 
strength.  If the Borough knows where the extra strength waste is coming from they can pass those fees 
back to those who are contributing it.  Pres. Handlan expressed concern that this was not being 
disclosed.  Mgr. Bickhart stated the Borough would like to find out where it is while it is still going on.  If 
this is disclosed and people change their practices then the Borough will never know.  Pres. Handlan 
stated that if that happens then the situation is remedied, and Mgr. Bickhart replied it is only remedied for 
the short term.  The people would go back to it after it is no longer an issue.  Pres. Handlan asked 
whether the Borough would continue to monitor it and Mgr. Bickhart stated that if it can be found they will 
continue to monitor it, but it is a big system.  The possible contributors are scattered all through the 
system and the monitoring gets very expensive.  Pres. Handlan asked how confident Mgr. Bickhart is that 
the offenders will be found since it has been going on for some time, and he replied that by not finding it 
in the day the samples were taken they have a better idea of where to look the next time.  As sampling 
continues, those places will be focused on.  C/P Viker stated that it sounds like Mgr. Bickhart has a very 
good plan.  Mgr. Bickhart stated the Borough is not trying to be clandestine, but they want to find this 
while it is still going on so that it can be corrected, and knowing that the correction has been made those 
places can be set up for continual monitoring.  Mgr. Bickhart stated he cannot see monitoring the entire 
Borough and breaking it up into lots of sampling locations because it becomes cost prohibitive.  In 
Sunbury they adopted an amendment to their industrial pretreatment ordinance requiring every industry to 
have a sampling manhole constructed at the industry’s expense.  Then Sunbury had a place to go and 
sample each industry.  Pres. Handlan asked if that is such a bad idea and Mgr. Bickhart replied it is not a 
bad idea at all, but it is an expensive idea.  Pres. Handlan stated it is the expense of the industry and 
Mgr. Bickhart replied the expanse of doing the sampling falls on the Borough but the expense of creating 
a place to monitor it and take the sample is the industry’s.  The City of Sunbury sends people out to 
collect samples.  C/P Viker noted that the Borough does want to be industry friendly.  Pres. Handlan 
asked if there are any fines involved when the source of the overage is discovered.  Mgr. Bickhart replied 
that the Borough’s ordinance is so archaic that with what is in force right now the Borough could not 
impose fines.  The ordinance should be amended quickly to this new procedure.  This has never been an 
issue or a problem.  The treatment plant has always been able to accommodate the waste strengths.  



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  15 of 16 

Pres. Handlan asked who has been added; if it was not a problem before, what is new to make it a 
problem now.  Mgr. Bickhart replied that the sewage treatment plant is overloaded with organics and they 
need to find out where the overloading is.  They sampled the Borough first and found that they were on 
average six times higher than they should have been.  Solicitor Cravitz stated ESCRA will give the 
Borough a surcharge.  They do not care whether the Borough finds the problem or not.  Pres. Handlan 
asked what new businesses have been added that would have caused this problem at the sewage 
treatment plan.  Mgr. Bickhart stated it is not that someone has been added, but that no one cared before.  
Now these things are being looked at more closely.  In the past the treatment plant handled the waste 
strengths no matter what.  The problems may have been there for decades or forever.  C/P Viker stated 
Mgr. Bickhart is using a ruling in and ruling out method to determine who or what institution or industry 
might be responsible, and it sounds like an excellent plan.  Mgr. Bickhart stated once the Borough started 
looking at this they found out all kinds of things.  The ordinance is inadequate because it does not have 
good surcharge formulas.  The Borough has not been adamant about industrial pretreatment permits, 
although there is an ordinance that says there should be permits and the industries are supposed to have 
given the Borough data on their waste strength.  The Borough has never done that because it has never 
mattered.  Everything has been fine.  The industry comes in, does what it wants, the sewage goes down 
and gets treated and everyone is happy.  What has changed is that now the treatment plant must look at 
the organic loadings and pass it back looking for corrective actions.  They are saying they found one of 
the four metering locations to have six times the flow of the concentration it is supposed to have.  The 
Borough needs to remedy that or start paying ESCRA for it.  The Borough needs to find out who is doing 
it and pass the costs back to them.  It is not the average household.  Mgr. Bickhart stated ESCRA bought 
two sampling units and did their sampling unbeknownst to him.  C/P Mengel asked if ESCRA has stopped 
with the Borough, and if so whether that is fair.  Mgr. Bickhart replied that they are continuing on through 
the entire system.  Pres. Handlan stated she would like to see the comparison of how other municipalities 
fare in the testing process.  Mgr. Bickhart stated ESCRA is looking at Shamokin Dam due to some 
concerns about a pumping station that has an accumulation of grease.  He stated they are being diligent, 
but the Borough was the first to be sampled.  The Borough cannot wait, but must be proactive and find 
out who is doing this.  He stated it could be an industry who knows they are doing something wrong and 
once they see the Borough in the manhole they will stop doing it, so the testing does not show it, and then 
the next day the industry does it again.  That is why the Borough did not make a lot of notice as to what 
they were doing.  Pres. Handlan asked that Mgr. Bickhart keep Council posted on this. 
 
NORTH-EASTERN SNYDER COUNTY JOINT AUTHORITY – Bill Hetherington and John C. Bickhart 
– No Report 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Isle of Que Flood Mitigation Funding for Emergency Access – C/P Mengel asked where the project 
stands as far as using the flood mitigation funds for the emergency access to the Isle of Que.  She asked 
if the Borough is waiting for the county to make a decision, or whether the county is waiting for plans.  
Mgr. Bickhart replied that it was being handled by Chad Aucker at Emergency Communications.  At the 
last meeting it was promised that a meeting would be set up at the county where representatives were 
coming who would tell the Borough what they needed to do and an application could be submitted for the 
emergency access.  This did not happen and Mgr. Bickhart called Chad, who said that Malcolm Derk took 
this upon himself and took all the files.  Mgr. Bickhart called Malcolm and discussed this.  Malcolm was 
apologetic for it being in the current state of disrepair and promised that he would try to get it to the point 
where the Borough could know what they would be able to do.  Mgr. Bickhart told Malcolm that he had 
the ability to write the application; he is not looking for the county to do this for the Borough.  The 
application needs get in because this $100,000 project is very important to the Isle of Que and is hanging 
in limbo.  Apparently there is only $600,000 left in the county out of this fund, so it has been piddled away.  
The Borough had a $300,000 project with the DH&L Fire Company and a $100,000 project with the Isle of 
Que emergency access, so the Borough was looking at $400,000 of money that was the Borough’s to 
spend.  The money was divvied up among the municipalities.  The Borough does not have the $300,000 
project because DH&L was sold to a private entity.  Mgr. Bickhart asked what the Borough could do with 



Meeting Date:  July 7, 2008  16 of 16 

the $300,000, and the entire project is no further ahead than it has ever been in the last six years.  
Malcolm Derk, who seems to be the responsible entity, indicates that he will follow up and there will be a 
meeting and the project will move forward.  Mgr. Bickhart stated he feels bad for Malcolm and Joe Kantz 
because they have a lot of issues to deal with and this is not the most important, yet there is $600,000 of 
money that could go to flood mitigation in Snyder County but unless the commissioners do something it 
eventually will not be available. 
 
MAYOR 
 
FrankFest – Mayor Carroll asked Junior C/P Morgan Botdorf if she planned to attend FrankFest and she 
replied that she had to work.  He asked if she was aware of it through school and she stated she got a 
flyer and was aware of it. 
 
Safe Walk to School Program Update – Mayor Carroll stated there is a meeting tomorrow morning at 
the district office for this program, to include Chief Garlock, the state police, Mgr. Bickhart, Penn 
Township, and the school district’s building administrators to formulate a plan.  The application will go in 
August 1.  Hopefully Mgr. Bickhart will soon have a resolution to present to Council for approval. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Following a motion by C/P Viker, meeting adjourned at 9:28 p.m. 
 
 
Attachments: None 
 


